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Rev. 10/16 

 

 

 

September 11, 2020 

 

 

 

Dear Prospective Bidders: 

 

For your information, this Addendum #1 for the contract to provide On-Call 

Electrical Services at Shelters - Citywide PIN 19BCCDM00401 / EPIN 

07119B0007 contains a copy of the attendance sheet from the pre-bid conference 

held on Tuesday, August 11, 2020, MWBE Presentation, PLA Presentation, a copy 

of current vendor’s pricing information, and the new Renovation PLA and its notice   

(attached hereto as Exhibit 1, 2, 3, 4, 5). 

     

The revised Schedule A page 15-R should replace the original pages in the 

solicitation. 

 

The answers to questions received from prospective bidders are on 

Attachment A.   

 

In addition, the bid due date is extended to Thursday, October1, 2020 by the 

close of business day.  Please note, the bid opening will be held on Thursday, 

October 8, 2020 at 11:00 am via Cisco WebEx platform. 

 

Additionally, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, prospective bidders have the option to 

submit bids to the Department of Social Services (HRA/DHS) either electronically to 

bids@dss.nyc.gov (excluding construction services), the Office of Contracts/Front 

desk, 150 Greenwich Street, 37th Floor, New York, NY 10007 or to the HRA 

Mailroom,150 Greenwich Street, 30th Floor, New York, NY 10007.  Please be advised 

that DSS cannot accept any email in a size greater than 20 MB. If submitting 

electronically, it is strongly recommended that you send such email with enough time 

to determine whether the transmission has failed. Also, DSS strongly recommends that 

you follow up with an email to bids@dss.nyc.gov to confirm that the email was 

transmitted successfully. 
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Any bid or proposal that is not received prior to the deadline at the specified 

location will be considered late and will not be accepted. 

Your interest in doing business with the City of New York is appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Vincent Pullo 

Exhibit: 1. Copy of the attendance sheet from the pre-bid conference

held on Tuesday, August 11, 2020

2. Copy of MWBE Presentation

3. Copy of PLA Presentation

4. Copy of current vendor’s pricing information

5. Copy of the new Renovation PLA and its notice
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Standard Construction Contract Schedule A 
March 2017 

SCHEDULE A 

GENERAL CONDITIONS TO CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
(INCLUDING GENERAL CONDITIONS RELATING TO ARTICLE 22 -- INSURANCE) 

PART I. REQUIRED INFORMATION 

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS 
BID BOND 

The Contractor shall obtain a bid bond in the amount 
indicated to the right.

5% of the Contract price 

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS 
PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS 

The Contractor shall obtain performance and payment 
bonds in the amount indicated to the right.  

100% of the Contract price

CONTRACT ARTICLE 14. 
DATE FOR SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION 

The Contractor shall substantially complete the Work
in the number of calendar days indicated to the right.  

1095 consecutive calendar days 

CONTRACT ARTICLE 15. 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

If the Contractor fails to substantially complete the
Work within the time fixed for substantial completion 
plus authorized time extensions or if the Contractor, in 
the sole determination of the Commissioner, has 
abandoned the Work, the Contractor shall pay to the 
City the amount indicated to the right.  

See Specifications Article 23, Liquidated Damages

CONTRACT ARTICLE 17. 
SUB-CONTRACTOR 

The Contractor shall not make subcontracts totaling an 
amount more than the percentage of the total Contract
price indicated to the right. 

Not to exceed % of the Contract price 

CONTRACT ARTICLE 21. 
RETAINAGE

The Commissioner shall deduct and retain until the 
substantial completion of the Work the percent value of 
the Work indicated to the right. 

5% of the value of the Work

15-R
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ADDENDUM #1 

ATTACHEMENT A 
  

 On-Call Electrical Services at Shelters - Citywide  

 

PIN 19BCCDM00401 / EPIN 07119B0007 
 

 

QUESTION 1  

 

Please provide the list of locations where planned work is to be performed? 

 

ANSWER 1 

 

The locations are located within the Five (5) Boroughs (Citywide). 

 

QUESTION 2 

 

Will MEANS book or other industry standards be used for preparation of work order estimate? 

 

ANSWER 2 

 

Yes. MEANS book or other industry standard can be used for the work order estimate.  

 

QUESTION 3 

 

Does the Prevailing Wage cost of $3.6 million include FICA, State & Local Taxes, Payroll Taxes, etc. 

or just as published on the government websites? 

 

ANSWER 3 

 

$3.6 million is the estimated labor cost based upon prevailing wage rates. When preparing 

cost estimates, the most recent rates can be used. 

 

QUESTION 4 

 

Our company is enrolled in PASSport system and completed all the required documents online, 

do we still have to submit Vendor and Principal questionnaires with bid proposal? 

 

 ANSWER 4 

 

Yes. Vendor and Principal questionnaires are required with your bid submission. 

(Please refer to Section 42 on page 13 in the Bid book) 
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QUESTION 5 

 

Do we have to submit payment and performance bond acknowledgement pages with bid 

submission? 

 

ANSWER 5 

 

Please refer to Section 42 on page 13 in the Bid book.  

 

QUESTION 6 

 

Please provide a complete list of documents/checklist that are necessary for bid submission? 

 

ANSWER 6 

 

Please refer to Section 42 on page 13 in the Bid book.  

 

QUESTION 7 

 

Please confirm that up to date 8/14/2020 there was no Addenda issued for this procurement? 

 

ANSWER 7 

 

The Department of Social Services (DSS) confirms, there was no Addenda issued for this 

procurement prior to August 14,2020. 

 

QUESTION 8 

 

In Schedule A of the bid documents, there is a requirement for the contractor to deposit a 

guarantee of 1% of the contract price. How much of the deposit, if any, is the contractor 

responsible for and will it be returned to contractor? 

 

ANSWER 8 

 

Please refer to PDF page 117, Article 24 in the Bid Book and specifically 24.4 and 24.6, 

respectively for the return or the retaining (by DHS) of the deposit.  
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QUESTION 9 

How should a vendor submit their bid security bond? 

ANSWER 9 

The official security bond should be mailed, or hand delivered to the DSS/Office of Contracts 

150 Greenwich Street, 37th Floor, New York, NY 10007 Attn: Polina Fuki or to the HRA 

Mailroom, 150 Greenwich Street, 30th Floor, New York, NY 10007 indicating the bid title and 

PIN  in advance of the bid due date.   If a vendor is submitting a bid via email, a copy of the 

security bond should accompany their bid.  However, please ensure the official security bond 

has been sent to our office.  DSS strongly recommends that you follow up with an email to 

bids@dss.nyc.gov to confirm that the security bond and bid was transmitted successfully.   

Please be advised that DSS cannot accept any email in a size greater than 20 MB. 

Vendors who will hand deliver their security bond or bid should advise the agency in advance 

by Tuesday, September 15, 2020 by close of business to schedule an appointment. When 

delivering, all vendors are advised to allow for sufficient time to clear building security and 

comply with social distancing procedures.  It is the bidders’ responsibility for ensuring that 

all submissions are received at the correct location by the due date and time. 

mailto:bids@dss.nyc.gov


HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE OF CONTRACTS

STREET ADDRESS

MBE WBE CITY, STATE, ZIP

Approved Electrical Contractors, Inc.

1436 Hylan Blvd.

Staten Island, New York 10305 Gennadiy Gakman info@approvedec.com

ZHL Group

2383 MCDONALD AVE, Brooklyn, NY 

11223 Lina Gusler lina@zhlgroup.com 

Palace Electrical Contractors, Inc 3558 Park Ave, Wantagh,NY, 11793 Bradley	Helton bhelton@palaceelectrical.com

DIAMOND POWER CONSULTANT 

GROUP, INC.

384 EAST 35TH STREET, BROOKLYN, 

NY, 11203 WOODY ANTHONY CHARLES DIAMOND.POWER.CONSULTANCY@OUTLOOK.COM

Kemlot Global Associates Inc X X 648 Dorothea Lane, Elmont, NY,	11003 Cal Nwabudu CalNwabudu@kemlot.com

Lerco Electric, LLC X 370 E 146th Street, Bronx, NY, 10455 Leoncio Reyes lercoelect@yahoo.com

Electrical Contracting Solutions Corp

84 South Bayles Avenue, Port Washington, 

NY, 11050 Shidhant Sontakke sid@nyecs.com

ALKEM ELECTRICAL CORP X X

513 ALBANY AVENUE, BROOKLYN, NY, 

11203 ENSMAN ALEXANDER alex@alkemelectric.com

M/WBE Officer / Designee Authorization

Name Title Signature

WebEx PRE-BID/PROPOSAL CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE SHEET

COMPANY NAME

CERTIFIED

E-MAILNAME OF ATTENDEE

PIN # 19BCCDM EPIN # 07119B0007   PROJECT NAME:  On-Call Electrical Services at Shelters - Citywide  

DATE: August 11, 2020       On-Call Electrical Services at Shelters - Citywide  

PLEASE PRINT CLEARLY

Lisa Morris Director VIU

EXHIBIT 1

Lisa Morris
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New York City’s Minority- and Women-owned Business Enterprise (M/WBE) 

Program, as codified in §6-129 of the New York City Administrative Code, 

was established to address evidence of discrimination in City contracting. 

Accordingly, the M/WBE Program is intended to eliminate the disparity 

between the availability of M/WBEs and their utilization in City contracting. 

The MWBE goal requirement for this solicitation requires vendors to subcontract 30% of the 

procurement opportunities to certified MWBE vendors.  

Contractors may fulfill their M/WBE Participation Goal requirements in three ways: 

1. Self-Performance as a City-certified M/WBE Prime contractor

2. Utilizing City-certified M/WBE Subcontractors

3. As a Qualified Joint Venture with a City-certified M/WBE Partner in which the

percentage of profit or loss to which the certified firm is entitled or exposed to is at least

25%. 52

If a bidder doesn’t think it can meet all or part of the M/WBE participation goal, it can apply for 

a Pre-Award Waiver.  

Bidders must submit waiver request-Schedule B part III to the agency two weeks prior to the bid 

due date.   

It is extremely important that every bidder follows the step-by-step instructions of the Schedule 

B, and provide all the information requested. 

As part of a responsive bid, the bidder must complete and sign the Schedule B either agreeing to 

the proposed goals,or indicating that they received an approved waiver. Unless a vendor has 

obtained a Full Waiver, the vendor must complete the utilization plan section of the Schedule B 

identifying subcontracting areas and whether those areas are designated for an M/WBE vendor.   

Most importantly, vendors must sign Part II of the Schedule B affirming and certifying, among 

other things, their understanding and adherence to the M/WBE participation goal requirements 

and that the information provided within their Schedule B, including their M/WBE Utilization 

Plan is accurate. 

EXHIBIT 2
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA  
Notice to Bidders and FAQ 

1 
2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

This contract is subject to a new 
2020 Project Labor Agreement 

This contract is subject to the attached Project Labor Agreement (“PLA”) 
entered into between the City and the Building and Construction Trades 
Council of Greater New York (“BCTC”) affiliated Local Unions. By 
submitting a bid, the Contractor agrees that if awarded the Contract the 
PLA is binding on the Contractor and all subcontractors of all tiers.  

The bidder to be awarded the contract will be required to execute a Letter 
of Assent prior to award. The Contractor shall include in any subcontract 
a requirement that the subcontractor, and sub-subcontractors of all tiers, 
become signatory to and bound to the PLA with respect to the 
subcontracted work. The Contractor will also be required to have all 
subcontractors of all tiers execute a Letter of Assent prior to such 
subcontractors performing any Program Work. 

Bidders are advised that the City of New York and City agencies have 
entered into multiple PLAs. The terms of each PLA, while similar, are not 
identical. Please also note that there are revisions between the 2020 
Citywide Renovation PLA attached to this bid and the prior 2015 
Citywide Renovation PLA.  

All bidders are urged to review the entire 2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 
prior to submitting a bid.   

To the extent that the terms of the PLA conflict with any other terms of 
the invitation for bids, including the Standard Construction Contract, the 
terms of the PLA shall govern. For example, the PLA section that 
authorizes the scheduling of a four-day week, ten hours per day on straight 
time at the commencement of the job, PLA Article 12, Section 1(A), 
overrides the Standard Construction Contract’s provision concerning a 
five-day work week with a maximum of eight hours in a day, Standard 

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

Construction Contract Article 37.2.1. Where, however, the invitation for 
bids, including the Standard Construction Contract, requires the approval 
of the City/Department, the PLA does not supersede or eliminate that 
requirement. 

This Contract is subject to the apprenticeship requirements of Labor Law 
§ 222 and to apprenticeship requirements established by the Department
pursuant to Labor Law § 816-b. Please be advised that the involved trades 
have apprenticeship programs that meet the statutory requirements of 
Labor Law § 222(e) and the requirements set by the Department pursuant 
to Labor Law § 816-b, Contractors and subcontractors who agree to 
perform the Work pursuant to the PLA are participating in such 
apprenticeship programs within the meaning of Labor Law § 222(e) and 
the Department’s directive. 

If this Contract is subject to the Minority-Owned and Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise (“M/WBE”) program implemented pursuant to New 
York City Administrative Code § 6-129, the specific requirements of 
M/WBE participation for this Contract are set forth elsewhere in this bid 
package. If such requirements are included with this Contract, the City 
strongly advises Contractors to read those provisions, as well as PLA 
Article 4, Section 4. A list of certified M/WBE firms may be obtained 
from the Department of Small Business Services (DSBS) website at 
http://mtprawvwsbswtp1-1.nyc.gov/, emailing MWBE@sbs.nyc.gov, or 
by calling the DSBS certification hotline at (212) 513-6311, or by visiting 
or writing the DSBS at One Liberty Plaza, 11th Floor, New York, New 
York, 10006.  

The local collective bargaining agreements (CBAs) that are incorporated 
into the PLA as PLA Schedule A Agreements are available from the 
Department’s Agency Chief Contract Officer upon the request of any 
prospective bidder.  

Please note that the “PLA Schedule A” is distinct from the Department’s 
Schedule A that is a part of this invitation for bids. 

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

2020 Citywide Renovation Project Labor Agreement 
Frequently Asked Questions 

1. Q.  Does a Contractor need to be signatory with the unions in the NYC Building and
Construction Trades Council (“BCTC”) in order to bid on projects under the PLA?

A. No, any contractor may bid by signing and agreeing to the terms of the PLA. The
contractor need not be signatory with these unions by any other labor agreement or for
any other project.

2. Q.  Does a Contractor agreeing to the PLA and signing the Letter of Assent create a
labor agreement with these unions outside of the project covered by the PLA?

A. No, the PLA applies only to those projects that the Contractor agrees to perform
under the PLA and makes no labor agreement beyond those projects. Contractors do
not need to sign any additional agreements (e.g., a collective bargaining agreement)
with a union aside from the Letter of Assent to work on a PLA project.

3. Q.  Do the provisions of the PLA apply equally to subcontractors as well as
contractors and how does the PLA affect the subcontractors that a bidder may utilize
on the project?

A. Yes, the PLA applies to subcontractors and all subcontractors performing
Program Work must agree to become party to the PLA. Subject to the Agency’s
approval of subcontractors pursuant to Article 17 of the Standard Construction
Contract, a Contractor may use any subcontractor, union or non-union, as long as the
subcontractor signs the Letter of Assent. See PLA Article 2, Section 8.

4. Q.  Are bidders required to submit Letters of Assent signed by proposed
subcontractors with their bid in order to be found responsive?

A. No, bidders do not have to submit signed Letters of Assent from their
subcontractors with their bid. However, subcontractors performing Program Work
will be required to sign the Letter of Assent prior to being approved by the
Agency.

5. Q.  May a Contractor or subcontractor use any of its existing employees to perform
this work?

A. Generally, labor will be referred to the Contractor from the respective signatory
local unions. However, Contractors and subcontractors may use up to 12% of their
existing, qualifying labor force for this work. Certified M/WBEs for which participation
goals are set pursuant to NYC Administrative Code § 6-129 that are not signatory to any
Schedule A collective bargaining agreements (“CBAs”) may use their existing employees
for the 2nd, 4th, 6th and 8th employee (per trade) needed on the job if their contracts are
valued at or under $2,000,000. Any additional workers will be referred to the Contractor
in accordance with the 12% referral requirements set forth in the PLA. See PLA Article
4, Section 2.

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

6. Q.  Must the City set M/WBE participation goals for the particular project or contract
in order for a certified M/WBE to utilize the provisions of PLA Article 4, Section 2(C)?

A. No. PLA Article 4, Section 2(C) specifies what categories of M/WBEs are
eligible to take advantage of this provision (i.e., those M/WBEs for which the City is
authorized to set participation goals under § 6-129). For purposes of Article 4, Section
2(C), it is not necessary for the project to be subject to § 6-129 or for the City to have
actually set participation goals for the particular contract or project. The result is the
same where a project receives State funding and therefore is subject to the requirements
of Article 15-A of the Executive Law.

7. Q.  May a Contractor bring in union members from locals that are not signatory
unions?

A. Referrals will be from the respective signatory locals and/or locals listed in
Schedule A of the PLA. Contractors may utilize ‘traveler provisions’ contained in the
local CBAs where such provisions exist and/or in accordance with the provisions of
PLA Article 4, Section 2.

8. Q.  Does a non-union employee working under the PLA automatically become a
union member?

A. No, the non-union employee does not automatically become a union member by
working on a project covered by the PLA and nothing in the PLA requires employees to
join a union or pay dues or fees to a union as a condition of working on the covered
project. This Agreement is not, however, intended to supersede independent requirements
in applicable local union agreements as to contractors that are otherwise signatory to
those agreements and as to employees of such employers performing covered work. Non-
union employees will be enrolled in the appropriate benefit plans and earn credit toward
various union benefit programs except in certain circumstances as set forth in the PLA.
See PLA Article 4, Section 6 and Article 11.

9. Q.  Are all Contractors and subcontractors working under the PLA, including non-
union Contractors and Contractors signatory to CBAs with locals other than those that
are signatories to the PLA, required to make contributions to designated employee
benefit funds?

A. Except in certain circumstances, as described in the following paragraph,
Contractors and subcontractors working under the PLA will be required to contribute on
behalf of all employees covered by the PLA to established jointly trusteed employee
benefit funds designated in the Schedule A CBAs and required to be paid on public
works under any applicable prevailing wage law. The Agency may withhold from
amounts due the Contractor any amounts required to be paid, but not actually paid into
any such fund by the Contractor or a subcontractor. See PLA Article 11, Section 2.

Non-union Contractors with bona fide private benefit plans that satisfy the requirements
of Labor Law 220 will not be required to pay into union benefit funds for their
employees working pursuant to Article 4, Section 2 (B) and (C) (“Core Employees”)
who are already covered under their bona fide private benefit plans. Supplemental
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

benefit funds in excess of the annualized value of the private benefit plans will be paid 
directly to workers as additional wages in compliance with Labor Law § 220. At the time 
of contract award, the Contractor shall make available to the contracting Agency a 
complete set of plan documents for each private benefit plan into which contributions 
will be made and/or coverage provided. The Contractor shall also provide certification 
from a certified public accountant as to the annualized hourly value of such benefits 
consistent with the requirements of Labor Law § 220. See PLA Article 11, Section 2. 

10. Q.  When do Core Employees become eligible for union benefits?

A. Union benefit plans have their own plan documents that determine eligibility and
workers will become eligible for certain benefits at different points in time. Contractors
who will have Core Employees should speak with the respective union(s) as to benefit
eligibility thresholds. Employees that may remain unaffiliated with any local union at
the completion of their employment may apply for any distributions to which they may
be entitled from the funds in accordance with the applicable rules and governing
documents of the unions and the employee benefit funds.

11. Q.  What happens if a Contractor or subcontractor fails to make a required payment to
a designated employee benefit fund?

A.  The PLA sets forth a process for unions to address a Contractor or a
subcontractor’s failure to make required payments. The process includes potentially the
direct payment by the City to the benefit fund of monies owed and the corresponding
withholding of payments to the Contractor. See PLA Article 11, Section 2.

Upon notification by a union or fringe benefit fund that a Contractor is delinquent in its
payment of benefits and a determination by the Agency that the union or fund has
submitted appropriate documentation of such delinquency, the Agency will thereafter
require the Contractor to submit cancelled checks or other equivalent proof of payment of
benefit contributions with certified payroll reports for work covered by this PLA on
which the Contractor is engaged.

The City strongly advises Contractors to read these provisions carefully and to
include appropriate provisions in subcontracts addressing these possibilities.

12. Q.  Does signing on to the PLA satisfy the Apprenticeship Requirements established
for this bid?
A. Yes. By agreeing to perform the Work subject to the PLA, the bidder
demonstrates compliance with the apprenticeship requirements imposed by this Invitation
for Bids.

13. Q. Who decides on the number of workers needed?

A. Except as expressly limited by a specific provision of the PLA, a Contractor
retains full and exclusive authority for the management of their operations, including the
determination as to the number of employees to be hired and the qualifications therefore
and the promotion, transfer, and layoff of its employees. See PLA Article 6, Section 1.

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

14. Q. What happens if a union does not provide a worker within 48 hours from the
request (Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays excepted)?

A. In the event that a Local Union does not fill any request for qualified employees
within a 48-hour period after such requisition is made by a Contractor (Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays excepted), a Contractor may employ qualified applicants from any
other available source.

15. Q. May a Contractor discharge a union referral for lack of productivity?

A. Except as expressly limited by a specific provision of the PLA, a Contractor
retains full and exclusive authority for the management of their operations, including
the right to discipline or discharge for just cause its employees. See PLA Article 6,
Section 1.

16. Q. May a contractor assign a management person to site?

A. Yes. Managers are not subject to the provisions of the PLA, so there is no
restriction on management and/or other non-trade personnel, as long as such personnel do
not perform trade functions. See Article 3, Section 1.

17. Q.  What type of work can Stewards perform?

A.  All Stewards must be working Stewards (i.e., they must be performing Program
Work).  In addition, Stewards may perform other tasks such as receiving complaints or
grievances from other employees of the Steward’s trade. Stewards may not determine
when overtime is worked. Stewards are entitled to the same wages as other employees of
that trade. See PLA Article 5, Sections 2 and 3.

18. Q.  Can a Contractor utilize apprentices?

A.  Contractors are permitted to utilize apprentices so long as the ratios between
journeyperson and apprentice do not exceed the allowable ratios set by the New York
State Department of Labor (“NYSDOL”).  Should a Contractor request that apprentices
be provided for Program Work, the referring Local Union shall comply with that request
so long as it is consistent with the maximum ratios permitted by NYSDOL.

19. Q.  What is HireNYC Construction Careers?

A.  HireNYC Construction Careers is an initiative to advance career opportunities
within the construction industry.  The initiative has a target goal of 30% of all hours
worked on PLA projects are performed by workers who reside in NYCHA housing or zip
codes where 15% or more of the residences are below poverty.  When a Contractor
requests employees, the trades will take into account the target goals when they refer
additional workers.

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

20. Q. Does the PLA provide a standard work day across all the signatory trades?

A. Yes, all signatory trades will work an eight (8) hour day, Monday through Friday
with a day shift at straight time as the standard work week. The PLA also permits a
Contractor to schedule a four-day (within Monday through Friday) work week, ten (10)
hours per day at straight time if announced at the commencement of the project. See PLA
Article 12, Section 1. This is an example where the terms of the PLA override provisions
of the Standard Construction Contract (compare with section 37.2 of the Standard
Construction Contract). The standard work week may be reduced to 35 or 37 ½ hours of
work in those limited circumstances where the City states in the bid documents that the
Contractor will not be given access to the site to accommodate an 8-hour day. The 8
hour, 7 ½ hour or 7-hour work day must be established at the commencement of the
project by the Agency and may not be altered by the Contractor.

21. Q. Does the PLA create a common holiday schedule for all the signatory trades?

A. Yes, the PLA recognizes nine common holidays. See PLA Article 12, Section 4.

22. Q.  Are workers entitled to holiday pay if they do not work on the holiday?

A.  No.  Workers are only entitled to pay if they work on the holiday. See PLA
Article 12, Section 4.

23. Q.  Does the PLA provide for a standard policy for ‘shift work’ across all
signatory trades?

A. Yes, second and third shifts may be worked with a standard 5% premium pay. In
addition, a day shift does not have to be scheduled in order to work the second and third
shifts at the 1.05 hourly pay rate. See PLA Article 12, Section 3.

24. Q. May the Contractor schedule overtime work, including work on a weekend?

A. Yes, the PLA permits the Contractor to schedule overtime work, including work
on weekends. See PLA Article 12, Sections 2, 3, and 5. To the extent that the Agency’s
approval is required before a Contractor may schedule or be paid for overtime, that
approval is still required notwithstanding the PLA language.

25. Q. Are overtime payments affected by the PLA?

A. Yes, all overtime pay incurred Monday through Saturday will be at time and one
half (1 ½). There will be no stacking or pyramiding of overtime pay under any
circumstances. See PLA Article 12, Section 2. Sunday and holiday overtime will be paid
according to each trade’s CBA.

26. Q.  Are there special provisions for Saturday work when a day is ‘lost’ during the
week due to weather, power failure or other emergency?

A. Yes, when this occurs the Contractor may schedule Saturday work at weekday
rates. See PLA Article 12, Section 5.

EXHIBIT 5
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2020 Citywide Renovation PLA 

27. Q. Does the PLA contain special provisions for the staffing of temporary services?

A. Yes. Where temporary services are required by specific request of the Agency or
construction manager, they shall be provided by the Contractor’s existing employees
during working hours in which a shift is scheduled for employees of the Contractor. The
need for temporary services during non-working hours will be determined by the Agency
or construction manager. There will be no stacking of trades on temporary services. See
PLA Article 15.

28. Q.  What do the workers get paid when work is terminated early in a day due
to inclement weather or otherwise cut short of 8 hours?

A. The PLA provides that employees who report to work pursuant to regular
schedule and not given work will be paid two hours of straight time. Work terminated
early for severe weather or emergency conditions will be paid only for time actually
worked. In other instances where work is terminated early, the worker will be paid for a
full day. See PLA Article 12, Sections 6 and 8. The usual reporting pay requirement of
two hours for employees who report to their work location pursuant to their regular
schedule does not apply when the National Weather Service issues a Weather Advisory
and the Contractor speaks to the employee at least four hours before their shift starting
time. See PLA Article 12, Section 6.

29. Q.  Should a local collective bargaining agreement of a signatory union expire
during the project will a work stoppage occur on a project subject to the PLA?

A. No. All the signatory unions are bound by the ‘no strike’ agreement as to the
PLA work. Work will continue under the PLA and the otherwise expired local CBA(s)
until the new local CBA(s) are negotiated and in effect. See PLA Articles 7 and 19.

30. Q.  May a Contractor working under the PLA be subject to a strike or other boycott
activity by a signatory union at another site while the Contractor is a signatory to the
PLA?

A. Yes. The PLA applies ONLY to work under the PLA and does not regulate labor
relations at other sites even if those sites are in close proximity to PLA work.

31. Q.  If a Contractor has worked under other PLAs in the New York City area, are
the provisions in this PLA generally the same as the others?

A. While PLAs often look similar to each other, and particular clauses are often
used in multiple agreements, each PLA is a unique document and should be examined
accordingly.

32. Q.  What happens if a dispute occurs between the Contractor and an employee during
the project?

A. The PLA contains a grievance and arbitration process to resolve disputes between
the Contractor and the employees. See PLA Article 9.

EXHIBIT 5
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33. Q.  What happens if there is a dispute between locals as to which local gets to provide
employees for a particular project or a particular aspect of a project?

A. The PLA provides for jurisdictional disputes to be resolved in accordance with the
NY Plan. A copy of the NY Plan is available upon request from the Agency. The PLA
provides that work is not to be disrupted or interrupted pending the resolution of any
jurisdictional dispute. The work proceeds as assigned by the Contractor until the dispute is
resolved. See PLA Article 10.

34. Q.  Does the PLA contain special provisions for JOCS or task order-based Contracts?

A. The PLA does not apply to Task Orders or Work Orders that do not exceed
$250,000 issued under JOCS or Requirements Contracts.  See PLA Article 3, Section 1.

35. Q.  How do the referral rules work for Operating Engineers Locals 14 and 15?

A. If there is Program Work within the jurisdiction of Operating Engineers Locals 14 
or 15, the contractor shall request labor from the appropriate local union.  If the locals
provide labor consistent with the referral provisions outlined in Article 4, Section 2, the
terms of the Local 14 CBA or Local 15 CBA will apply to that work.  However, if the
locals do not provide labor for that work, the terms of the PLA will apply to such work.
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Apprentice Training 

Recruitment Notification and Minimum Qualifications (AT 505) Apprentice 

Training Program Affirmative Action Plan (AT 603), Apprenticeship Agreement 

(AT 401), or such alternate reporting system as the parties may negotiate during 

the term of this Agreement
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2020 NYC AGENCY RENOVATION PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT

LIST OF SIGNATORY UNIONS

International Brotherhood of Boilermakers, Iron Ship Builders, Blacksmiths, 
Forgers and Helpers, AFL-CIO, Local Lodge No.5

Bricklayers and Allied Craftworkers, Local Union No. 1
Building Concrete & Excavating Laborers, Local Union No. 731

N.Y.C. and Vicinity District Council of Carpenters
Cement Masons, Local Union No. 780

Concrete Workers District Council No. 16
Asbestos, Lead & Hazardous Waste, Laborers Local Union No. 78

Construction & General Building Laborers Local Union No. 79
Derrickmen and Riggers Local Union No. 197

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local Union No. 3
International Union of Elevator Constructors, Local Union No. 1

Heat & Frost Insulators & Allied Workers, Local Union No. 12
Heat & Frost Insulators & Allied Workers, Local Union No. 12A

Pavers & Road Builders, Laborers Local Union No. 1010
New York State Iron Workers District Council
Structural Iron Workers, Local Union No. 40

Structural Iron Workers, Local Union No. 361
Mason Tenders District Council

Metallic Lathers & Reinforcing Ironworkers, Local No. 46
Ornamental Iron Workers, Local Union No. 580

Glaziers No. 1087, District Council 9
Painters, District Council No. 9

Metal Polishers, Local Union No. 8A-28A; District Council No. 9
Drywall Tapers Local Union No 1974, District Council 9

Bridge & Structural Steel Painters, Local Union No. 806, District Council 9
Operative Plasterers Local Union No. 262

UA Plumbers Local Union No. 1
Private Sanitation, Teamsters Local Union No. 813

Roofers & Waterproofers, Local Union No. 8
Sheet Metal Workers, Local Union No. 28

Sheet Metal Workers, Local Union No. 137
UA Steamfitters, Local Union No. 638

Teamsters, Local Union No. 282
Tile, Marble & Terrazzo, B.A.C. Local Union No. 7
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Union Current Agreement w/ 
Architectural and Ornamental Iron Workers 
Local Union 580, AFL-CIO Allied Building Metal Industries, Inc. 

Building, Concrete, Excavating & Common 
Laborers Local 731 Independent 

Building, Concrete, Excavating & Common 
Laborers Local 731 

Members of the General Contractors 
Association of New York, Inc. 

Bricklayers Local 1 of the International Union of 
Bricklayers and Allied Craftworkers Independent 

District Council No. 9, I.U.P.A.T Glaziers Local 
1087 Window and Plate Glass Dealers Association 

Drywall Tapers and Painters Local 1974, 
affiliated with International Union of Painters & 
Allied Trades and Drywall Taping Contractor's 
Association & Association of Wall-Ceiling & 
Carpentry Industries NY, Inc. 

Independent 

Enterprise Association of Steamfitters and 
Apprentices Local 638 

Mechanical Contractors Association of NY, 
Inc. 

Enterprise Association of Steamfitters and 
Apprentices Local 638 Independent 

Elevator Constructors Local 1 of NY and NJ ThyssenKrupp Elevator Corporation 

Elevator Constructors Local 1 of NY and NJ Independent 

Highway Road and Street Laborers Local Union 
1010 of the District Council of Pavers and Road 
Builders of the Laborers' International Union of 
North America AFL-CIO 

Independent 

Highway Road and Street Laborers Local Union 
1010 of the District Council of Pavers and Road 
Builders of the Laborers' International Union of 
North America AFL-CIO 

Member of the General Contractors 
Association of New York, Inc. 

International Association of Heat and Frost 
Insulators and Allied Workers Local No. 12 of 
New York City 

Independent 

International Association of Heat and Frost 
Insulators and Allied Workers Local No. 12 of 
New York City 

The Insulation Contractors Association of 
New York City, Inc. 

International Association of Heat and Frost 
Insulators and Allied Workers Local No. 12A of 
New York City 

Independent 
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International Association of Heat and Frost 
Insulators and Allied Workers Local No. 12A of 
New York City 

Environmental Contractors Association, Inc. 

International Brotherhood of Boilermakers, Iron 
Ship Builders, Blacksmiths, Forgers and Helpers, 
AFL-CIO, Local Lodge No. 5 

Boilermakers Association of Greater New 
York 

Local Union No. 3 International Brotherhood of 
Electrical Workers, AFL-CIO New York Electrical Contractors Association 

International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 
282, High Rise Contract 

Building Contractors Association & 
Independents 

Local 46 Metallic Lathers Union and Reinforcing 
Iron Workers of NY and Vicinity of the 
International Association of Bridge, Structural, 
Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers 

Cement League 

Local 46 Metallic Lathers Union and Reinforcing 
Iron Workers of NY and Vicinity of the 
International Association of Bridge, Structural, 
Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron Workers 

Independent 

Local 8 Roofers, Waterproofers & Allied Workers Roofing and Waterproofing Contractors
Association of New York and Vicinity 

Local Union 1 of the United Association of 
Journeymen and Apprentices of the Pipe Fitting 
Industry of the United States and Canada 

Association of Contracting Plumbers of the 
City of New York 

Local Union Number 40 & 361 of Bridge, 
Structural Ornamental and Reinforcing Iron 
Workers AFL-CIO 

Independent 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 Building Contractors Association 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 Interior Demolition Contractors Association 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 Independent 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 NYCDCA 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 Environmental Contractors Association 

Mason Tenders DC & Laborers’ International 
Union – Local 78 & 79 ABMC 
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Operative Plasterers’ and Cement Masons’ 
International Association Local No. 262 Independent 

Painters and Allied Trades AFL-CIO, District 
Council No. 9 (Painting and Protective Coatings 
CBA) 

Independent 

Painters and Allied Trades AFL-CIO, District 
Council No. 9 (Painting and Protective Coatings 
CBA)

The Association of Master Painters & 
Decorators of NY, Inc. and The Association of 
Wall, Ceiling & Carpentry Industries of NY, 
Inc. and The Window and Plate Glass Dealers 
Association 

Sheet Metal Workers’ International Association, 
Local 28 

Sheet Metal & Air Conditioning Contractors 
Association of New York City, Inc. 

Sheet Metal Workers’ International Association, 
Local 137 The Greater New York Sign Association 

Structural Steel and Bridge Painters Local 806, 
DC 9 International Union of Painters and Allied 
Trades, AFL-CIO  

New York Structural Steel Painting 
Contractors Association 

Teamsters Local 813 Independent 

Teamsters Local 813 IESI NY Corporation 

The Cement Masons' Union, Local 780 Cement League 

The District Council of Cement and Concrete 
Workers (comprised of Local 6A; Local 18A and 
Local 20) 

Cement League 

The District Council of Cement and Concrete 
Workers (comprised of Local 6A; Local 18A and 
Local 20) 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Heavy Carpenters 

GCA 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Dockbuilders Local No. 
1556 

Concrete Contractors of NY 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Dockbuilders Local 
1556 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Millwright Local 740 

Independent 
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The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Timbermen Local 1556 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Timbermen Local 1556 

GCA 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Heavy Carpenters 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Carpenters 

Manufacturing Woodworkers Association of 
Greater New York Incorporated 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America 

The Hoisting Trade Association of New York, 
Inc. 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America 

The Test Boring Association 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America 

Building Contractors Association 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America 

The Association of Wall-Ceiling & Carpentry 
Industries of New York, Incorporated 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners 

The Cement League 

The District Council of NYC and Vicinity of the 
United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners of 
America  

New York City Millwright Association 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners 

Greater New York Floor Covering Association 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Carpenters 

Association of Architectural Metal & Glass 
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The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Carpenters 

Concrete Contractors of NY 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Building Construction 
Carpenters 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Local 2287 

Independent 

The District Council of New York City and 
Vicinity of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters 
and Joiners of America for Shop Carpenters 

Independent 

The Tile Setters and Tile Finishers Union of New 
York and New Jersey, Local 7 of the International 
Bricklayers and Allied Craftworkers 

The Greater New York and New Jersey 
Contractors Association 

United Derrickmen & Riggers Association, Local 
197 of NY, LI, Westchester & Vicinity Contracting Stonesetters Association Inc. 

United Derrickmen & Riggers Association Local 
197 of NY, LI, Westchester and Vicinity 

Building Stone and Pre-cast Contractors 
Association 
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Provide a full day’s work for a full days pay; 
Safely work towards the timely completion of the job; 
Arrive to work on time and work until the contractual quitting time; 
Adhere to contractual lunch and break times; 
Promote a drug and alcohol free work site; 
Work in accordance with all applicable safety rules and procedures; 
Allow union representatives to handle job site disputes and grievances without resort to 
slowdowns, or unlawful job disruptions; 
Respect management directives that are safe, reasonable and legitimate; 
Respect the rights of co-workers; 
Respect the property rights of the owner, management and contractors. 

Management adherence to the collective bargaining agreements; 
Communication and cooperation with the trade foremen and stewards; 
Efficient, safe and sanitary management of the job site; 
Efficient job scheduling to mitigate and minimize unproductive time; 
Efficient and adequate staffing by properly trained employees by trade; 
Efficient delivery schedules and availability of equipment and tools to ensure efficient job 
progress;
Ensure proper blueprints, specifications and layout instructions and material are available in a 
timely manner 
Promote job site dispute resolution and leadership skills to mitigate such disputes; 
Treatment of all employees in a respectful and dignified manner acknowledging their 
contributions to a successful project. 
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(August 2020 version)  
Non-exhaustive list of zip codes where at least 15% of the individuals are below the federal poverty rate  

(Zip codes within 100 mile radius of NYC)

Zip Code Borough Neighborhood 
10001 Manhattan Midtown South
10002 Manhattan Chinatown
10009 Manhattan East Village
10025 Manhattan Manhattan Valley
10026 Manhattan Central Harlem
10027 Manhattan Manhattanville
10029 Manhattan East Harlem
10030 Manhattan Central Harlem
10031 Manhattan Hamilton Heights
10032 Manhattan Inwood and Washington Heights 
10033 Manhattan Washington Heights
10034 Manhattan Inwood
10035 Manhattan East Harlem
10037 Manhattan Central Harlem
10038 Manhattan Lower Manhattan
10039 Manhattan Central Harlem
10040 Manhattan Inwood and Washington Heights 
10301 Staten Island St. George 
10302 Staten Island Port Richmond 
10303 Staten Island Mariner's Harbor 
10304 Staten Island Stapleton 
10310 Staten Island West Brighton 
10451 Bronx Concourse Village 
10452 Bronx High Bridge 
10453 Bronx University Heights 
10454 Bronx Mott Haven 
10455 Bronx Longwood
10456 Bronx Melrose 
10457 Bronx Central Bronx
10458 Bronx Bedford Park 
10459 Bronx Morrisania 
10460 Bronx East Tremont
10462 Bronx Parkchester 
10463 Bronx Kingsbridge 
10466 Bronx Wakefield 
10467 Bronx Norwood
10468 Bronx Bronx Park and Fordham 
10472 Bronx Unionport 
10473 Bronx Soundview 
10474 Bronx Hunts Point
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PLA Exhibit C - HireNYC Construction Careers  
(August 2020 version)  

Non-exhaustive list of zip codes where at least 15% of the individuals are below the federal poverty rate  
(Zip codes within 100 mile radius of NYC)

Zip Code Borough Neighborhood 
11101 Queens Long Island City 
11102 Queens Northwest Queens
11106 Queens Ravenswood
11203 Brooklyn East Flatbush
11204 Brooklyn Borough Park 
11205 Brooklyn Fort Greene
11206 Brooklyn East Williamsburg 
11207 Brooklyn East New York 
11208 Brooklyn East New York / Cypress Hills 
11211 Brooklyn Williamsburg 
11212 Brooklyn Brownsville
11213 Brooklyn Crown Heights 
11214 Brooklyn Bensonhurst
11216 Brooklyn Central Brooklyn
11218 Brooklyn Kensington 
11219 Brooklyn Borough Park 
11220 Brooklyn Sunset Park
11221 Brooklyn Bushwick
11223 Brooklyn Gravesend
11224 Brooklyn Coney Island
11225 Brooklyn Prospect Lefferts Gardens 
11226 Brooklyn Prospect Park South 
11230 Brooklyn Midwood
11232 Brooklyn Sunset Park
11233 Brooklyn Ocean Hill
11235 Brooklyn Brighton Beach 
11237 Brooklyn Bushwick and Williamsburg 
11239 Brooklyn Starrett City
11354 Queens Downtown Flushing 
11355 Queens Queensboro Hill
11368 Queens South Corona
11369 Queens East Elmhurst
11373 Queens Elmhurst
11416 Queens Southwest Queens
11417 Queens Ozone Park
11418 Queens Richmond Hill
11430 Queens Ozone Park
11432 Queens Jamaica Center
11433 Queens South Jamaica
11435 Queens Briarwood
11691 Queens Far Rockaway
11692 Queens Arverne

Data Source: 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-year estimates 
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PLA Exhibit C - HireNYC Construction Careers  
(August 2020 version)  

Non-exhaustive list of zip codes where at least 15% of the individuals are below the federal poverty rate  
(Zip codes within 100 mile radius of NYC)

Zip Code State City or Town 
06401 CT Ansonia
06510 CT New Haven
06511 CT New Haven
06513 CT New Haven
06515 CT New Haven
06519 CT New Haven
06604 CT Bridgeport
06605 CT Bridgeport
06607 CT Bridgeport
06608 CT Bridgeport
06610 CT Bridgeport
06702 CT Waterbury
06704 CT Waterbury
06705 CT Waterbury
06706 CT Waterbury
06708 CT Waterbury
06710 CT Waterbury
06810 CT Danbury
07002 NJ Bayonne 
07017 NJ East Orange 
07018 NJ East Orange 
07022 NJ Fairview
07026 NJ Garfield
07029 NJ Harrison
07047 NJ North Bergen 
07050 NJ Orange
07055 NJ Passaic
07060 NJ Plainfield
07062 NJ Plainfield
07087 NJ Union City
07093 NJ West New York 
07102 NJ Newark 
07103 NJ Newark
07104 NJ Newark
07105 NJ Newark
07106 NJ Newark
07107 NJ Newark
07108 NJ Newark
07111 NJ Irvington 
07112 NJ Newark
07114 NJ Newark
07201 NJ Elizabeth 
07202 NJ Elizabeth
07206 NJ Elizabethport
07208 NJ Elizabeth 
07304 NJ Jersey City
07305 NJ Jersey City
07306 NJ Jersey City
07307 NJ Jersey City
07310 NJ Jersey City
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PLA Exhibit C - HireNYC Construction Careers  
(August 2020 version)  

Non-exhaustive list of zip codes where at least 15% of the individuals are below the federal poverty rate  
(Zip codes within 100 mile radius of NYC)

Zip Code State City or Town 
07501 NJ Paterson
07502 NJ Paterson
07503 NJ Paterson
07504 NJ Paterson
07505 NJ Paterson
07513 NJ Paterson
07514 NJ Paterson
07522 NJ Paterson
07524 NJ Paterson
07608 NJ Teterboro
07703 NJ Fort Monmouth
07712 NJ Asbury Park 
07727 NJ Farmingdale
07734 NJ Keansburg 
07740 NJ Long Branch 
07820 NJ Allamuchy
07939 NJ Lyons
08031 NJ Bellmawr
08045 NJ Lawnside
08095 NJ Winslow
08102 NJ Camden
08103 NJ Camden
08104 NJ Camden
08105 NJ Camden
08110 NJ Pennsauken
08217 NJ Elwood
08224 NJ New Gretna
08608 NJ Trenton
08609 NJ Trenton
08611 NJ Trenton
08618 NJ Trenton
08638 NJ Trenton
08701 NJ Lakewood 
08751 NJ Seaside Heights
08808 NJ Broadway
08861 NJ Perth Amboy
08901 NJ New Brunswick
10545 NY Maryknoll
10550 NY Mount Vernon
10601 NY White Plains
10701 NY Yonkers
10703 NY Yonkers
10705 NY Yonkers
10801 NY New Rochelle
10927 NY Haverstraw 
10932 NY Howells
10940 NY Middletown
10950 NY Monroe
10952 NY Monsey
10963 NY Otisville 
10977 NY Spring Valley 
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PLA Exhibit C - HireNYC Construction Careers  
(August 2020 version)  

Non-exhaustive list of zip codes where at least 15% of the individuals are below the federal poverty rate  
(Zip codes within 100 mile radius of NYC)

Zip Code State City or Town 
11096 NY Inwood
11550 NY Hempstead
11556 NY Uniondale
11713 NY Bellport 
11798 NY Wyandanch
11951 NY Mastic Beach
11970 NY South Jamesport
12401 NY Kingston 
12416 NY Chichester
12419 NY Cottekill
12427 NY Elka Park
12428 NY Ellenville
12432 NY Glasco
12457 NY Mount Tremper
12475 NY Ruby
12489 NY Wawarsing 
12490 NY West Camp
12491 NY West Hurley
12516 NY Copake
12550 NY Newburgh 
12561 NY New Paltz
12583 NY Tivoli
12589 NY Wallkill
12594 NY Wingdale 
12601 NY Poughkeepsie 
12701 NY Monticello
12725 NY Claryville
12729 NY Cuddebackville
12732 NY Eldred 
12733 NY Fallsburg 
12743 NY Highland Lake 
12747 NY Hurleyville
12749 NY Kauneonga Lake 
12751 NY Kiamesha Lake
12754 NY Liberty
12758 NY Livingston Manor 
12759 NY Loch Sheldrake
12762 NY Mongaup Valley 
12763 NY Mountain Dale
12779 NY South Fallsburg 
12780 NY Sparrow Bush
19007 PA Bristol 
19123 PA Philadelphia
19125 PA Philadelphia
19134 PA Philadelphia
19135 PA Philadelphia
19136 PA Philadelphia
19137 PA Philadelphia

Data Source: 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-year estimates Page 5 of 5 
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Career Pathways: One City 
Working Together, 
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i. Apprentice Training Recruitment Notification and Minimum
Qualifications (AT 505) 

ii. Apprentice Training Program Affirmative Action Plan (AT 603)

iii. Apprenticeship Agreement (AT 401) 
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